
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 7:00 P.M. 
 
For those wishing to listen live to the meeting, please go to ci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for 
the meeting link. Contact the city at 952.960.7900 during regular business hours with questions. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

B. Roll Call 
  Mayor Labadie___ 
 Callies___ 
 Maddy___ 
 Sanschagrin___ 
 Zerby___ 
  

C. Review and Adopt Agenda 
  Attachments 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA The Consent Agenda is a series of actions which are being considered for 
adoption this evening under a single motion.  These items have been reviewed by city council and city 
staff and there shall be no further discussion by the council tonight on the Consent Agenda items.   
Any council member or member of city staff may request that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for separate consideration or discussion.  If there are any brief concerns or questions by 
council, we can answer those now. 

Motion to approve items on the Consent Agenda & Adopt Resolutions Therein: 
 

A. City Council Work Session Minutes of August 28, 2023 Minutes 
 
B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of August 28, 2023 Minutes 

 
C. Approval of the Verified Claims List Claims List 

 
D. Approve Donation for 2023 Oktoberfest Parks/Rec Director Memo 
  Resolution 23-093 

 
3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR This is an opportunity for members of the public to bring an item, 
which is not on tonight's agenda, to the attention of the Council. Anyone wishing to address the 
Council should raise their hand, or if attending remotely please use the “raise hand” function on your 
screen and wait to be called on. Please make your comments from the podium and identify yourself 
by your first and last name and your address for the record.  Please limit your comments to three 

http://www.ci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting


CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Page 2 
 
 
minutes.  No discussion or action will be taken by the Council on this matter. If requested by the 
Council, City staff will prepare a report for the Council regarding the matter and place it on the next 
agenda. 
   
4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
  
5. PARKS 

 
A.  Approve Independent Recreation Contractor Agreement with Parks/Rec Director Memo 
 Bach to Rock 
  
B. Approve Independent Recreation Contractor Agreement with Parks/Rec Director Memo 

Snapology 
  

6. PLANNING 
 

A. Comprehensive Plan Amendment for Lake Park Villas Resolution 23-094 
Location: 24250 Smithtown Road 
Applicant: City of Shorewood  

   
7. ENGINEERING/PUBLIC WORKS   

 
8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS 

    
A. Compensation Study City Clerk/HR Director Memo 
 Presentation by Dr. Tessa Melvin, David Drown Associates Resolution 23-095 

 
9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Staff 
   

B. Mayor and City Council 
  
10. ADJOURN 

 
 



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY,  AUGUST 28, 2023 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Sanschagrin, andZerby; CityAttorney
Koch; CityAdministrator Nevinski; ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield; and
Planning Director Darling

Absent: Councilmember Maddy

B. Review Agenda

Zerby moved, Sanschagrin seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. Motion passed
4/0.   

2. SMOKING INPUBLIC SPACES

CityAdministrator Nevinski noted thatthisagenda itemisabouttraditional smoking with tobacco
products, butalsothenewcannabis legalization.  Hestated thatthisissomething thatwaspointed
outbytheLeagueofMinnesota Cities thatthelawissilent onwhetherornotcannabis usein
public, suchasparks, isanallowable use.  Henotedthatmany citieshavesmoking bansinparks,  
butShorewood doesnothavethatinplace.  Heexplained thatsomecitieshavegonetheroute
ofprohibiting allcannabis useinpublic, forexample, Excelsior.  Hestated thathealsobelieves
thatTonkaBayandGreenwood areconsidering similarordinances. Heshared examples from
othercitiesandwhattheyhavedoneaboutuseinpublicspaces.  Hestated thatstaff islooking
forinput fromtheCouncil onwhether ornottheywanttoprohibit theuseofcannabis inpublic
placesoriftheywanttoinclude smoking, ingeneral, inthoserules.  Hestatedthathefeelsitis
important fortheCouncil tokeepinmindthattheSLMPD willbeasked toenforce whatever
decision thattheycometo.   Heintroduced LeahKochandCampbell Knutson, whowasfillingin
forCityAttorney Shepherd tonight.    

MayorLabadie noted thatstaffhadincluded theordinance passed byExcelsior intheirpacket
andaskedwhatthevotewasonthatitem.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thathedidnotknowtheexactvotetally.   

MayorLabadie notedthatsheistheliaison totheSLMPD andnotedthatChiefTholenhasstated
numerous timesthatanordinance orsomething hisdepartment isexpected toenforce, iseasier
ifallfourofthecitieshaveidentical orsimilar language.  Shegavetheexample ofallfourcities
having different language surrounding dogsrunningatlargewhichmakes itdifficult forthe
officers.  Shestated thatthelanguage intheproposed ordinance issimilar toExcelsior, butnot



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 2of6

identical, butnotedthatShorewood’slanguage matches theStateStatute.  SheaskedCity
Attorney Kochtoweigh inonthatpoint.   

CityAttorney Kochstatedthatwithin theStateStatute itallowsforlocalmunicipalities toestablish
thisasapettymisdemeanor forpublicconsumption andexplained thattheonlylimitation isthat
itexcludes one, two, andthree.  Shereferenced language usedinExcelsior’sordinance and
notedthatshepreferred theproposed version forShorewood because itismoreenforceable and
defined.    

MayorLabadie stated thatonethingthatconcerns heriswhether theCouncil wouldbepassing
thiswiththeintent thatthepolicewillticketsomeone andenforce itorifitwasbeingdoneas ‘lip
service’.  Shestatedthatshefeelsallfourmember citiesareverydifferent withrelation totheir
publicspaces.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thathewould liketoknow ‘why’ theCityisdoingthisandnotedthat
ifthereason wasthattheydonotwantpeople gettinghighintheparks, thiswould notpreclude
edibles.  Hestated thatifthe ‘why’ wasthesmokepartofitandthatpeopledonotlikethesmell
ofit, thenhefeelsitshouldextend totobacco products also.  Hestated thathewould alsoliketo
knowaboutusewhiledrivingandnotedthatashereadstheproposed language, people would
notbeabletosmoke intheircarbecause theywouldbeonapublic roadthatisgovernment
controlled.  Heexplained thathedidnotseeanyharminallowing somebody tosmoke intheir
car.  Hestated thatheshared MayorLabadie’sconcern aboutenforcement butnotedthathefelt
theCityshouldhavesomecontrols inplace.    

CityAttorney Kochnotedthatregarding useinvehiclesaccording totheStateStatute, itisacrime
topossess cannabis products inamotorvehicle.  Shestated thatyoucannotuseitorpossess it
unless itisinaclosedpackage, similar toalcohol.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked ifpeoplewerecurrently allowed tosmoke rightnexttothe
players thatmaybeonthefields.    

MayorLabadie confirmed thatasofrightnowtherearenorestrictions onsmoking intheparks.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin explained thathewasforfreedom, ingeneral, butinasituation
where thereissecondhand smoke, itcreates issueswithpeople beingabletohavecleanair.  He
stated thathewouldbeinfavorofatleastrestricting itsomewhat andsuggested thatperhaps
therearesetplaceswithin theparkswherepeople couldbeallowed tosmoke thatwouldbeaway
fromwherechildren willbelocated.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheagreed withmostofhiscomments butwasnotsurehow
shefeltabout havingadesignated smoking place.  Shestated thatshefelt thattheCityshould
alsoregulate tobacco iftheyaregoingtobedoingitforotherproducts.  Shenotedthatshealso
hadconcerns about theenforceability butnotedthatthisisapettymisdemeanor anddidnotwant
theCitytotrytoturnitintoafelony typeissueanduseitasareasontostopcitizens.    

MayorLabadie statedthatshethinksabout thelarge-scale baseball eventsatFreeman South
where itissigned andmarked ‘NoParking’ andpeople still parkallover.  Shestated that then
residents begincalling thepolicewhothengooutandwritetickets andthenthe Monday after
thosetournaments, shegetsinundated withcallsfrompeoplewhowereunhappy.  Shestated



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 3of6

thatsheknows thatithasoftenledtotimes wherepeopleareberating theofficers.  Shestated
thatifthis isapettymisdemeanor shewonders iftheCitywould reallyenforce itandatwhatlevel.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thathefeels thisordinance, aswritten, wouldalsobanuseon
sidewalks andstreets.    

CityAttorney Kochstated thatwascorrect andexplained thatsomecitieshadtakenatwo-fold
approach wheretheyregulate parksonewaybuthavealowerstandard forotherpublicspaces.   
Shenotedthatsomecitieshavespecified parksaloneandhavenottouched otherpublicspaces.    

Councilmember Zerbyexplained thathekeeps thinking ofcul-de-sacpartiesandneighbors sitting
together intheir lawnchairswanting tosmokeorhaveadrink, andwiththis, thatwouldnotbe
allowed.   

Councilmember Callies suggested thatitmaymakesensetoaddbeverage restrictions withinthe
parks.    

MayorLabadie notedthatshethought theCityalready hadrestrictions inplaceforbeverages and
believed thatitisonlylegallyallowed inBadger Parkiftheeventhasapplied forapermit.    

Councilmember Callies askedhowitcameabout thattheCitydidnotregulate tobacco usewithin
theparks.    

Councilmember Zerbyknows thattheyhavediscussed itbeforebutCouncil nevertookanyaction.  

MayorLabadie notedthatshefeelsitwasbecause theCitydoesnotholdmanyevents throughout
theyear.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatmaybetrue, butpeoplegototheparksallthetime.  

Councilmember Zerby notedthathesmokes cigarsanddoesnotsmoke themnexttopeople in
theparksandexplained thathewill findacornersomewhere ifhewants tohaveone.  Hestated
thathedoesnotpushthesmokeontootherpeopleandbelieves thatistrueformostsmokers
andhasnotseenitasaproblem.  Hestated thathefeelsmost tobacco usersareconsiderate
andhasnotseenitbeabigproblem.    

Councilmember Callies asked ifthatmeant hefeltregulation wasnotnecessary.  Shestated that
couldbeanother viewonthisbeingsomething thatasolution looking foraproblem.    

MayorLabadie referenced signsthatyoufrequently seewalking intobuildings thatsaythings like
Gunsarebanned here’ andaskedifthiscouldbesomething thattheCitybansforthose large
scaleevents, suchastournaments.   

CityAttorney Kochstated thattheycouldbutitwouldbebestiftherewassometypeofpolicyon
thebooks.  Shenotedthattheproblem wouldbethatbyhavingapolicyandnotanordinance,  
theywouldnothavetheoption forittobeapettymisdemeanor.    

Councilmember Zerbyaskedabout thedifference between aruleandapolicyandwhatwould
happen iftheCityputasignoutinthepark.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 4of6

CityAttorney Kochexplained thatatabaseline theywouldsimplycommunicating anexpectation
whichmaybeenough forsomepeople.  Shenotedthattheyalsocouldpossibly escalate itto
trespassing andprohibit themfromtheCity’sproperty.  Sheexplained thatapettymisdemeanor
iseasier forofficers tounderstand andapply, ifneeded.  Shestatedthatapettymisdemeanor is
nottechnically acrimebuttheideawouldbethatitservesasadeterrent.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftherehadbeenanycomplaints aboutsmoking intheparks.   

Planning Director Darling notedthatsheisnotcertain thattheywouldhavecometoher, but
explained thatshehadnotseenanyinthelastsixyears.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thathehadalsonotheard anycomplaints aboutsmoking in
theparks.   

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thatshehadnotheardanycomplaints andnoted
thatshehadonlyseenitdoneonce.    

Mayor Labadie asked iftheCouncil hadanyone reachouttothemonthistopicsince itwasnoticed
tobeontheagenda.  Sheexplained thatshehadthreepeople reachouttoherinsupportofsome
sortofordinance banning thisactivityandnobody hadreached outthatwasagainst it.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathehadalsohadafewpeople contact himthatwere in
supportofaban.   

Councilmember Callies statedthatshehadpeople contactherabout thechange inthelaw, but
notspecifically about thisproposed ordinance.  Shestated thatpeoplehavecommented thatthey
wereconcerned about theodorifitisallowed intheparks.  Shereiterated herearlier comment
questioning whether thiswasreallyaproblem.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin questioned whether another optionmaybetoholdoffdoing
anything andwaitandseeifitbecomes aproblem before theyputanything intoplace.    

Councilmember Calliesagreed andstated thatifthereisnotaproblem shequestioned whythe
Cityneeded toestablish thisordinance.  Shestated thatifitisaproblem, thisisanaction theCity
cantakeatanytimeandnotedthat itcanhappen relatively quickly.  

MayorLabadie readaloudsomeofthephrases thatconcerned herregarding ‘hempderived’,  
cannabis flour’, and ‘lowpotencyhempedibles’ because shethinks itwillbeverydifficult for
officers toknowwhatpeoplearehaving.    

Councilmember Zerbyagreed andnotedthathedidnotbelieve theCityandtheofficers were
checking everyone’stumblers andredSolocups foralcohol.     

MayorLabadie stated thatshedoesnotwant theseproducts intheparks, buttherearesomany
aspects todrafting something that isenforceable.  Shestatedthat italsocomesbacktoapoint
madebyCouncilmember Zerbyabout ‘why’ theCitywouldbedoingthisandtheidearaisedby
othersonsimplywaiting toseeifitbecomes aproblem.   

Councilmember ZerbynotedthathefeelsExcelsior hasadifferent situation thanShorewood, so
heunderstands whytheytookthestance thattheydid.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 5of6

MayorLabadie agreed andnotedthatshefeltthat thepeople coming totheCity’sparksare
coming foraspecificpurpose andnotsimplyahang-outspot, liketheparksareinExcelsior.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeltthattherewasreason tobeconcerned about thisas
anewproduct thatareintoxicants, soitdoesfeel likethereshouldbesomeregulation butnoted
thatrightnow, shefeels theyshouldwaitandseeifitisactuallyaproblem.    

Councilmember ZerbynotedthattheParkCommission haddiscussed thistopicandalsohad
mixed feelings about it.  Hestated thattheyhadagooddiscussion, buttherewasnotareal
consensus ordirection attheendofthenight.     

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thattheParkCommission haddiscussed itlast
weekandfeels theironly ‘mild’ consensus wasthatitshouldnotbeacomplete banandwanted
ittobeallowed insomespaces.  Shestated thattheywanted theretobeadesignated areawithin
theparkandpossibly alsoallowed onthetrails, sidewalks, andparking lots, butnotnearchildren.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatshehasworked inothercitiesthathavelargebaseball
organizations andtheysellbeerattheparksbutnoted thatwouldalsobeadifferent situation
thanwhattheyhave inShorewood.  

MayorLabadie stated thatshehasbeenveryvocal inthepastaboutnotallowing alcohol inthe
parksandisproud thattheydonotallowit, but allowing anevent toobtainapermit isafair
option.  Sheexplained thatshefeels itisimportant forpeople tobeabletocomeandenjoy the
parkswiththeir families.  Shestated that, intheory, shewould liketodothesamethingwiththis
regulation, butatthemoment isconcerned about therealityofitsenforceability andpossibly
putting theofficers inaverytoughposition.  Shestated thattheCouncil didnotneedtotake
action tonight butshethinks itwasgood thattheyatleaststarted thediscussion onthistopic.   
Shesuggested thattheycouldaskedChiefTholen tocomeinandgivethemhisperspective or
theycouldalsoletitsit, asis, forsix months andseewhathappens.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thattherearealotofunknowns surrounding cannabis right
now.    Hestated thathesuspects withthecreation oftheOfficeofCannabis Management they
willbewaiting aboutayearbeforetheystarttoseesomeguidance coming outofthatoffice.  He
stated thathisoverall message fortheCouncil isthatthingsaregoingtocontinue tochange and
evolvebecause thereisalotthattheydonotknow.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin statedthathethinks the ‘why’ question isimportant, forexample
theydonotwant thosekindsofbeverages because theydonotwant intoxicated peopleatthe
parksandthispotentially creates thesameissuewithcannabis use.  Hestated thatiftheyseeit
asaproblem withintoxication, thentheyshouldalignitwiththebeverage restrictions, butifitan
issuerelated tosecond handsmoke, theydonotknowifthatwillbeaproblem ornot.    

Councilmember Callies statedthatsheagreed anddidnotseethis asanemergency where
something needed tobedonerightnow.  Shestated thatshealsowasnotsureitwouldbevery
productive tohavetheChief comeinandtalkabout thiswiththeCouncil nordidshefeelthatsix
months wouldbeenough timetotrulybeabletoexamine thisissue.    

MayorLabadie explained thatshehadjust thrownoutsixmonths asanexample.  Shenotedthat
oneother thingthatmakesherabithesitant isthatShorewood wasthefirstCityintheStatethat



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 6of6

enacted beefriendly language intheirpoliciesandeverycitythatfollowed modified their language
tomakeitlessrestrictive andultimately,  Shorewood endedupfindingoutthat their language
needed tweaking.  Shestated thattherewerenotmanycitieswhohavetakenastanceonthis
issueandexplained thathavinggonethrough thisprocess withthebeefriendly language, it
makesherleery.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thatheagreed andwouldbeinfavorofgiving thismoretime.  He
notedthathewouldnotbeinfavorofaCity-wideban, butcouldbeinfavorofaparkbanofsome
sort.  Hestated thathefeelsitmaybeabetter ideatoplugthissubstance intothesectionofthe
ordinance thatspeaks toalcohol andaddittothelistofsubstances thatcannotbeusedinthe
parks.    

MayorLabadie outlined whatshefeltwastheconsensus oftheCouncil: toscheduleadiscussion
atafutureworksession, ifaproblem arises otherwise, ifnothing hasarisen thentheyjustplanto
takeanother lookatthisinapproximately oneyear.    

3. ADJOURN

Sanschagrin moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting
ofAugust 28, 2023, at6:44P.M.  Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 28, 2023, 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:01P.M.  

A. Pledge ofAllegiance
B. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Sanschagrin, andZerby; CityAttorney
Koch; CityAdministrator Nevinski; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic
WorksMorreim; ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield; andCityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Maddy

C. Review Agenda

Sanschagrin moved, Callies seconded, approving theagenda aspresented.   

Motion passed.  

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Councilmember Calliesaskedabout item2.G. andwhatthejobdutieswouldbeforthe
Shorewood Community andEventCenter Attendant.   

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield explained that theattendant isthestaffmember whois
onsiteduringtheevening andweekend rentals.  Shegaveabriefdescription oftheirnormal
duties.   

Councilmember Callies askedifthisposition wasmore ‘oncall’ andnotregular hours.    

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield confirmed thatthisposition wouldbescheduled asthey
wererequired bytherentals.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout item2.L. andaskedforadditional detailsabout thecable
provider references.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski explained thattheCityessentially haswhathewould refertoasa
longhaulcarrier’ thatcontracts directly withtheCity’sITprovider toensure thatthereis
connectivity.  Hestated thattheyareproposing switching astherehavebeennumerous outages
overthelastfewmonths. Henotedthat theircontract withthisspecific carrierexpires inOctober
andexplained thattheCity’sITcarrier believes thatthiswillbeaseamless transition.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 2of11

Councilmember Sanschagrin referenced item2.H. regarding theDeerManagement program.  He
notedthatwhathehadfoundoutfromdiscussion onthisitemisthattheareasdepicted onthe
mapinblueareareaswherehunters ‘can’ go, butnotthattheynecessarily ‘will’ gointothose
areas.    

CityAdministrative Nevinski stated thatwascorrectandexplained thattheareasdepicted inblue
areareas where theCityhasreceived somesortofright-of-entry.  Henoted thatthehunters will
gather together andthenpicktheirlocations fromthoseavailable areas.  Heexplained thatthere
areseventeen parcels designated butthehunters mayonlygototenofthoseproperties.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thatyearsagotheDNRprovided theCitywith infrared imagesof
where thedeerherdswereandasked iftheCitywasstillreceiving thatinformation.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshedidnotbelieve theCityhadreceived thatinformation
thispastyearbutnotedthattheyhaveinallprevious years.  Shestated thatshebelieves thisis
something thattheCityshould continue withbecause ithelps themknowiftheprogram iseffective
ornot.    

Councilmember Calliesasked howsomeone couldgetontheschedule forthedeermanagement
hunt.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatonly ‘sharpshooters’ areallowed.  

Councilmember Callies askedhowsomeone couldgettheirproperty included.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatiftheyareinterested, theycanjustnotifyCitystaffandthey
willarrange thelegalagreements thatarenecessary.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski clarified thattheyarereferring tobowhuntingevenwhentheyuse
theterm ‘sharpshooter’.    

Councilmember Zerbynotedatypographical errorinitem2.G.   

Zerby moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofAugust 14, 2023

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofAugust 14, 2023

C. Approval of theVerified Claims List

D. Approve Permanent Appointment ofChris Pratley, Public Works Light
Equipment Operation

E. Accept Improvements and Approve Final Payment forCovington Watermain
Improvements, City Project 21-08, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-084, “A
Resolution Accepting Final Improvements and Authorizing Final Payment
for theCovington Watermain Improvement Project; City Project 21-07.”   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 3of11

F. Accept Improvements and Approve Final Payment for2022 Lift Station
Rehabilitation, City Project 21-08, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-085, “A
Resolution Accepting Final Improvements and Authorizing Final Payment
forLiftStations 7, 9, and 10Rehabilitation Project; City Projects 20-12and
21-08.”  

G. Approve Hire ofShorewood Community and Event Center Attendant

H. Approve Deer Management Agreement

I. Approve Forte Payment Processing Agreement

J. Setting the Truth-in-Taxation Public Meeting Date, Adopting RESOLUTION
NO. 23-086. “AResolution Selecting the2023 Truth-in-Taxation Public
Meeting Date.”  

K. Approve Concessions Agreement Fall 2023

L. Approve Extension ofITServices Contract with Warner Connect

M. Accept Quote and Award Contract forDrainage and Utility Improvements,  
City Project 23-05, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-087, “AResolution
Awarding Contract for the2023 Drainage and Utility Improvement Project;  
City Project 23-05.”  

N. Adopt Amended South Lake Minnetonka Police Department Joint Powers
Agreement, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-088, “AResolution Approving a
Revised Joint Powers Agreement Governing theSouth Lake Minnetonka
Police Department.”  

Motion passed.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

5. PARKS

A. Report byCommissioner Wenner onJuly 25, 2023, and August 22, 2023, Park
Commission Meetings

ParksCommissioner Wennergaveanoverview oftheParkCommission meetings fromJulyand
August, asoutlined intheminutes.    

B. Authorize Municipal Consent forMill Street Trail Corridor

Planning Director Darlinggaveanoverview oftheplanning fortheMillStreetTrailCorridor.  She
notedthattheCountyhasheldaseriesofpublicevents togarner engagement withresidents on



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 4of11

theproposed plans.  Sheintroduced LukeSandstrom, ProjectManager fromHennepin County to
summarize theprojectandthefeedback theyhadreceived fromthepublicengagement.   

LukeSandstrom, Hennepin County, gaveanoverview oftheproposed project location, feasibility
reports, publicengagement activities andresponses.  Heexplained thatthemajority ofthe
responses supported OptionTwoasthepreferred layout. Henotedthattheyrecently foundout
thatMnDOThasidentified thebridge overHighway 7forreplacement in2029.  Hestated thathe
ishopeful thattheywillbeabletoworkwiththeMnDOT whentheybegin theirplans inorderto
widenthebridgeto include thetrail through thisareasothereisnotabottleneck andpossibly
create adirectconnection totheLakeMinnetonka Regional Trail. Heexplained thatbefore this
project iscompleted byMnDOTtheywillplantohaveflashing lights thatpeoplecanpushinorder
tocrosssafely.  Hereviewed theproject schedule andnotedthatconstruction isslated tobegin
inthesummer of2025.  Henoted thattheCityofExcelsior planstosupport OptionOneandnoted
thatifShorewood supports thepreferred OptionTwo, thentherewillbeatransition pointbetween
thetwotypesoftrails.  Heexplained thatinthenextfewmonths theyareplanning topursue some
grantoptions andnotedthatanytheyreceivewillbesplitevenlywiththecities.     

MayorLabadie stated thatsheandCouncilmember Zerbyattended theParkCommission meeting
lastweekwhere tworesidents spokewholivednexttoeachother.  Shenotedthatoneneighbor
wasinfavorofOptionOneandtheotherwasinfavorofOptionTwo.  SheaskedMr. Sandstrom
ifhefelteitheroftheoptions hadbetterchances atreceiving grantmoney.    

Mr. Sandstrom explained thattheonlydifference intheoptionswerethebikeable shoulders which
hedidnotbelieve wasa ‘makeorbreak’ partofthecriteria forgrant fundingsotheyshouldnot
beexcluded fromgrantconsideration foreitheroption.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftherewasasignificant costdifference between thetwo
options.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thattherewasnotacostdifference totheCityandexplained thattypically
thecostparticipation isroughly fifty-fiftyandisdonebyitem.  Hestatedthat thingslikethe
pavement replacement wouldbecompletely theresponsibility oftheCounty.  Henotedthathe
believed theestimated costdifference fortheCity, atthispoint, isonlyabout fivepercent.      

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftheywouldneedtoacquireanyeasements.  

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatwhentheCounty doesprojects likethis, theyacquire thelandneeded
throughatrailandsidewalk easement andnotfeetitles.  Heexplained thatthismeant thatno
property linesorsetbacks wouldbechanging.  Hestated thatthiseasement allows themto
construct thetrailandalsofortheCitytoplowandmaintain itinthefuture.  HenotedthatOption
Onewouldhavelesseasement impacts.   

Councilmember Zerbystated thatheisover themoonexcited thatthisproject ismoving forward.   
Hestatedthattheyhaddoneatrailproject onSmithtown Roadwhere theywidened theshoulders
sotheycouldputinbikeable path.  Henotedthatitwassupposed tobetwofeetononesideand
fourfeetontheother, however onceitwasconstructed itwasmuch lessthanthatbecause the
measurements didnottakethepaintstripes intoconsideration.  Heaskedifthisproposed path
wouldbefourfeetwide.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 5of11

Mr. Sandstrom explained thatitisfourfeetcentered onthepaintsotherewouldbethreeinches
adjacent tothetravel lanethatwouldnotbepartofit.  Hepointed outthatthefour feetdidnot
include thetwofeetofthegutterpan, soeffectively, itwillbesixfeetwide.    

Councilmember Zerby stated thatheappreciated theconsideration given fordelivery vehicles
andasked iftherecouldeverbeaconsideration foranOption1.5andhavethefour-footshoulder
onthewestsidebutleaveitoffoftheeastside.    

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatapproach couldresolve comeoftheconcerns butnotedthatthere
wouldstillbemaildelivery anditwouldalsocreateasituation where thedelivery drivers would
havetophysically crossthestreetwithpackages tomakethedeliveries whichcouldbring
additional safetyconcerns.     

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelsthisisagreatprojectandisgladtoseethattheyare
coordinating andlooking ahead inorder tomakeadirectconnection totheregional trailwhen the
bridge isreplaced.  Sheaskedhowdifficult creating thetransition points thatwillmesh thetwo
designs willbe.   

Mr. Sandstrom statedthatiftheyknowwhatiscoming, likethebridge, theycan ‘futureproof’  
themselves anddesign itinawaywhere there isnotalotofrework necessary.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked iftherecouldbeanyopportunities tocompromise anything
basedontheconcerns thathavebeenraised bytheproperty owners regarding things likeremoval
oftheir trees.  

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatthisiskindofablanket assumption alongthecorridor atthispointand
believes thereissome spacewhere theycanalternate theplansandcutafootortwohereand
there.  Henotedthat insomecaseschanging thingsbyafootortwowillnotalleviate someofthe
concerns but reiterated thatthereissomeleeway. Hestated thatmoving forward hewillmeet
witheachproperty ownerandstakethingsoffandlookatthingsonacase-by-casebasis inorder
tofitinwhatmakessenseandseewillultimately work.    

Councilmember CalliesnotedthattheCouncilhadreceivedacomment fromalocal resident
questioning whytheCitydidnothavemore trailsandaccess topartsoftheCity.  Shenotedthat
itcomesdowntoabalance ofthetrailsversus losingvegetation which shefeelswillalsobepart
ofthisproject indetermining thebalance forthefuture, between theexisting treesandhaving the
trails.     

Mr. Sandstrom notedthat theCounty isfullycommitted totreereplacement andcanworkwith
homeowners forsometypeofgreenscreening because atrail isgoing in.    

Councilmember Zerbystatedthathethinkshaving thistrailconnection willbegreatandnoted
thathehashadconversations withtheThree RiversDistrict about thehugeneed fornorth/south
trailsbecause manyofthetrailsarebuiltonoldrailroad trackswhicharemostlyeast/west.  He
reiterated thathethinks thisisawonderful project.   

MayorLabadie stated that thefactthatthrough theirvarious outreach methods, theyhave
connected withabouteighthundred people.  Shenotedthatfromthisfeedback itshowed that
about fifty-onepercentofpeople wereconcerned aboutcyclistandpedestrian safety andasked
iftheCounty feltthatOption Twowasthesaferoption.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 6of11

Mr. Sandstrom confirmed thattheCounty’spreferred andsaferoptionwasOptionTwobecause
therearemulti-modes thatwilluseMillStreet.  

MayorLabadie askedforCouncil feedback onwhichoption theypreferred.   

Councilmember Zerbystated thatOptionTwomakesalotofsensetohimespecially because Mr.  
Sandstrom hasstated thatthere issomeleeway insomeofthedesign choices totrytominimize
someoftheimpacts toresidents withregard totreesandlandscaping.  Henotedthatonlyfifteen
percentofthedesignplanshadbeencompleted thusfar.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedwhatwouldhappen iftheCouncil supported OptionTwo
tonightbutthengotmoredataanddetailsdecided thatOptionOnewouldactually beabetter fit.  
HeaskediftheCitywould havetheoption toswitch theirchoice laterintheprocess.   

Mr. Sandstrom explained thatthemotion tonight istodetermine whatstepwillgoforward tofinal
designsotheycanfinetunethedetails.  Henotedthatwhathehasdoneinthepastiswhenthey
gettothethirty, sixty, andninetypercentpoints inthedesign process, hehas comebacktoa
Council meeting topresent thatinformation andgivetheoption tomakechanges.  Heexplained
thatultimately, theywouldcomebacknextyearforapproval before theygooutforconstruction.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedatwhatpoint intheprocess willitbeconsidered toolateor
costprohibitive tochange theplans.   

Mr. Sandstrom statedthattypically whenyougettothesixtyorninetypercent pointyoudonot
wanttobemaking toomanychanges andnotedthattheyshouldgettothatpoint inaboutMayof
2024.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshealsofavorsOptionTwo.  

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheagreedandnotedthatalsothemajority ofthepublic input
supported OptionTwo.   

Zerby moved, Callies seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-089, “ AResolution
Supporting Hennepin County’sPreferred Layout (Option Two) for theMill Street Pathway
Project.”   

Motion passed.  

6. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Eggenberger onAugust 1, 2023, Planning Commission
Meeting

Planning Commissioner Eggenberger gaveabriefoverview ofthediscussion andaction takenat
theAugust1, 2023; Planning Commission meeting asoutlined intheminutes.   

B. Approve Rezoning/Final Plat forLake Park Villas PUD



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 7of11

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftherequest byTSMLProperties torezone the
property at24250Smithtown RoadandforFinalPlatforadevelopment thatcontains seven lots
forsingleandtwo-familydwellings.  Sheexplained thatthedevelopment wasalsoproposed on
theadjacent parcelwithinTonka Baywithfouradditional dwellings.  Shenotedthatafter the
applicant hadsubmitted theoriginal rezoning application, staffaskediftheywouldwithdraw itand
resubmit itwithFinalstageplanswhich theyagreed todo.  Shestated thattheCouncil hasseen
theconcept anddevelopment plans/Preliminary Platbuthadnotseentherezoning request upto
thispoint.  Shestated thattheapplicant would liketodevelop thisproperty throughaPUDsothey
wouldhaveflexibility andexplained thatapublic hearing washeldatthePlanning Commission
meeting.  Shestated thattheapplicant isrequesting aprivate streetwithin thesubdivision, to
reduce thelotareaperunit, reduce setbacks, andincrease impervious surfaceontheproperty.   
Sheshared specific designdetails thatarebeingproposed andstated thatstaffandthePlanning
Commission recommended approval, withavoteoffourinfavorandoneopposed.  Sheexplained
that theCommissioner whohadvoted inopposition wouldpreferamoreaffordable housing option
inthislocation.  Shenotedthatshehadincluded thethree lettersthattheCityhadreceived on
thisproposal within thepacket.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifTonkaBayhadapproved theplans.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheyhadreviewed theplans lastweekandhadvotedfor
approval butwasnotsureofthevotedetails.   

MayorLabadie asked ifTonka Bay’sapproval wasstillwaiting forapproval fromMetCouncil.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwasfortheComprehensive Planamendment thatwas
approved previously.    

Councilmember Callies statedshefelttheCityhadthoroughly reviewed thisrequest onmorethan
oneoccasion.  Shenoted thatshefelttherezoning wasconsistent withtheplanandwasin
supportofwhat isbeingproposed.    

Councilmember Zerbyexplained thathewasstillopposed tothedesignoftheproject, but
because heunderstands theneedfordensity, hewillvoteinfavorofthisaction.    

Callies moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Approving ORDINANCE 601,” An Ordinance
Amending Section 1201.09Subd. 2 oftheShorewood Zoning Code – The Shorewood
Zoning Map (Lake Park Villas PUD).”    

Motion passed.  

Callies moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adopting the revised RESOLUTION NO. 23-090, “A
Resolution Approving thePublication ofaSummary ofOrdinance 601 Regarding City Code
Ordinance Amendments Related toRezoning 24250 Smithtown Road from R-2AtoPUD.”    

Motion passed.    

Sanschagrin moved, Callies seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION 23-092, “AResolution
Approving aFinal Plat forLake Park Villas forProperty Located at24250 Smithtown Road.”    

Motion passed.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 8of11

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve Tobacco License:  Shorewood Tobacco

CityAdministrator Nevinski reviewed therequest foraTobacco License fromShorewood
Tobacco.  Hestated thattheyhavesuccessfully completed thematerials, paidthelicensing fees,  
andpassed theirbackground check.  Staff recommends approval.    

Zerby moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-091, “AResolution
Approving aLicense toSell Tobacco Products intheCity ofShorewood toShorewood
Tobacco, Inc.”   

Motion passed.  

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. Review and Update ofWest Side Drainage Study and Shorewood
Lane Ravine

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatin2019, theCityhadhiredBarrEngineering tocomplete the
WestSideDrainage Studywiththegoalofdeveloping comprehensive solutions totheissuesand
incorporating themintotheCity’sCIP.  Hereviewed thefiveprojects thatwouldbecompleted by
theendoftheyearandoutlined theremaining twoprojects, including costs, forNobleRoadand
GrantLorenz Channel.  Hestated thatoneotherpartofthiswasthepondintheAshland Woods
development andafter lookingatvarious iterations, theCityhasprovided astormsewerstubto
connect totrunklineinStrawberry Lane.  Heexplained thatthepond istheresponsibility ofthe
HOA, sothisstuballows themtoputinthedraintileinthefuturewhich willhelpsolvetheir issues.  
Heupdated theCouncil ontheShorewood LaneRavine projectandstated thatthereisalarge
amountoferosion alongthebanks.  Hestated thatstaffhasbeenworking tofindasolution that
addresses theconcerns fromallsidesandexplained thattheWatershed andtheArmyCorpsof
Engineers would liketoseeconstruction ofsomeGabionrockbaskets thatessentially builds
retaining wallswherenecessary.  Hestated thatthisapproach wouldaddtotheconstruction costs
andexplained thatwhilestaff isexploring possible outside fundingsources itisunlikely that they
willnotbeabletofindenough tofillthe $250,000gapthat theyareprojecting.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked ifthisranoverprivate property orifitwasjustonpublic land.   

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thattherewasanexisting twenty-foot-widedrainage easement,  
butthestreamhasmeandered overtimeandgotten larger than twenty feetwidewhichmeans
thatportions ofitrunoverprivate property.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftheideawasthisproject wouldbecompletely funded by
theCityorwhether theresidents shouldbeasked tochipin. Hesuggested that theCouncil
discuss thepossibility ofassessing theresidents foraportionofthecosts.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 9of11

CityEngineer Buddestated thatcouldbeanoptionbutnotedthattheCityhasnotreally
expressed thatintent thusfarintheprocess.    

Councilmember Callies statedthat thestaffreport talkedaboutseveral locations oftheundercut
slopesposed significant hazards andwerecausing standing treestofall.  Sheasked whatwas
meantby ‘significant hazards.  

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatsomeofthehazards werebrought upfromneighbors relating
tokidsplaying inthearea.  Hestatedthatmostareafairdistance awayfromstructures butfeels
itwouldreallynotbesafeconditions ifanyone wasdownthereinthearea.    

Councilmember Callies askedifsomething shouldbedoneinthemeantime.  

CityEngineer Buddestated thathedidnotknowatwhatpoint itwouldbecome ‘toobad’ oran
imminent threat tothepublic.  Henotedthattheycouldtryposting signsandputting upfencing
butthenitbecomes something thatstaffhastomaintain andifpeoplewanttogetdownthere,  
theywill.    

Other

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield reported thattheyhadfifty-sixrentalsattheShorewood
Community andEventCenter inAugustandnotedthattheyalready havefifty-fourscheduled for
September.    

Public WorksDirector Morreim notedthatcrewswillbefinishing upthesewercleaning inthenear
future.  Hestated that theyhavealsobeenworking ongetting thespeedsensorsupandrunning
intwodifferent locations.  Hedistributed thedatathattheyhavegathered totheCouncilandgave
abriefoverview.  Heexplained thattheyhadputthemuponHoward’sPointandWedgewood
andputanother oneuponEureka thismorning.  Hestated thattheyshare thisdatawiththe
PoliceDepartment sotheycanalsoevaluate it.    

Councilmember Zerbyaskedifhehadmoredatathatwouldshowthetimesandnotedthatmany
timesitendsupbeingthesameperson thatislateforwork.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathehadtakenalookatthatalongWedgewood and
wouldsaythattherearesomepotential trendsandexplained thatthiswaswhyallthedatawas
senttothePoliceDepartment aswell.  Heexplained thattheCitywasstill inadrought warning
situation andtheCityhasbeendoingafairamountofcommunication withregard towater
restrictions.  Hestated thatasoflastweek, theCity’swaterusagehasnotreduced, butthewarm
weather lastweekdidnothelp.  Hestated thathefeelstheconversations withproperty owners
andHOAshavebeengenerally productive.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked ifhehadseenanyissueswiththequality coming outofthe
wells.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathewasnotseeinganyissuesatthistime.  Hestated
thatthereisnorainforecasted foratleastaweekandnotedthatifthingscontinue tobethisdry,  
theirwellswillgetworse.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 10of11

Councilmember Calliesnotedthatshehadreceived threecallsaboutthissituation andaskedif
theyhadgotten feedback onwhether thattypeofcommunication wasworking.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thattheyhadgottenafairnumber ofresponses when
theydidthepublicalertandexpressed hisappreciation toCityHallstaff fortakingmanyofthose
calls.  Hestated thathebelieves peopleareaware thattheyareinadrought andunderstand the
reasons fortherequest toreducetheirusage.    

Councilmember Zerbyasked ifPublicWorksDirector Morreim hadusedthestreet rating
technology yet.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thattheyarenearlycomplete butstillhaveabitontheeast
sideandtheislandsyettodo.  Henotedthathedefinitely feltthattheimagery willbehelpful.  He
notedthatheplanstogiveanupdate totheCouncil inSeptember.   

CityEngineer BuddestatedthatBirchBluffcontinues toprogress well, andstreetconstruction
shouldbeginlater thisweekwithcompletion attheendofSeptember orearlyOctober.  Henoted
thatStrawberry Lanehasaverysimilar schedule.  

CityAdministrator Nevinski askedstafftotouchbasewiththeCouncil ontheFreeman ParkTrails
schedule.  

CityEngineer Buddestated thatproject isscheduled tostart theweekofSeptember 11, 2023,  
andexplained thattheCitywasjuststarting topushoutsomeofthecommunication onthis,  
because theyjustfoundouttoday.      

CityAdministrator Nevinski statedthattheSpecial Election forCounty Commissioner
LeTondresse’sseatwillbeheldonApril9, 2024, andifaprimary isneeded itwillbeheldon
March26, 2024.     

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Zerbynotedthathehadattended theParksCommission meeting.  

Mayor Labadie stated thatshewillbeinFaribault laterthisweekattending aMinnesota Mayor’s
Executive Committee meeting aspartoftheiroutreach efforts tobringmeetings tomayors who
areinoutstate areas.  Shereminded everyone thatSeptember 5, 2023, iswhenschoolwillstart
andkidsandbuseswillbeoutinmanyareasandasked thatresidents havepatience.  Shestated
thatshewillholdherCoffeewiththeMayoreventatShorewood Landings onFriday, September
1, 2023, andwillbebringingadetective fromtheSLMPD togiveapresentation aboutsenior
fraud/scams.  ShenotedthatonSeptember 8, 2023, shewillbeattending thequarterly meeting
withRepresentative DeanPhillipsandencouraged staffandtheCouncil topassalongany
information thattheywould likehertobringupatthismeeting. Sheexplained thatlaterthatday
therewillbeaVietnam Veterans Commemoration eventheld inMaplePlain thatmanyofthose
mayors willalsobeattending.  

10. ADJOURN

Zerby moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
August 28, 2023, at8:32P.M.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 28, 2023
Page 11of11

Motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk































CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2DTitle/Subject:   ResolutionAcceptingDonationforOktoberfest
Meeting Date: September 11, 2023 MEETING
Prepared by:  Janelle Crossfield, ParksandRecreation Director TYPE
Reviewed by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator Regular
Attachments:  Resolution Meeting

PolicyConsideration:  Pursuant toMinnesota State Statutes sections §465.03and
471.17alldonations orgiftsofrealandpersonal property, including donations forthe

benefit ofpublic recreational services, mustbeaccepted bythecitycouncil.  

Background: LakeFellowship Unitarian Universalists areproviding volunteers and
sponsoring Oktoberfest atthebronze levelwithadonation of $100.   

NameofDonor Amount/Item
LakeFellowship Unitarian Universalists   $ 100

FinancialConsiderations: Thedonation willoffseteventexpenses.   

ActionRequested: Motion toapprove theresolution accepting thedonation asstated
intheattached resolution. Motion, second andfouraffirmative votesrequired.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-093

ARESOLUTIONACCEPTINGDONATIONTOTHE
CITYOFSHOREWOOD2023

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood isgenerally authorized toaccept donations ofreal
andpersonal property pursuant toMinnesota Statutes Section 465.03forthebenefit of
itscitizens, andisspecifically authorized toaccept giftsandisauthorized toaccept gifts
forthebenefit oftheirpublic recreational services pursuant toMinnesota Statutes
section 471.17; and

WHEREAS, thefollowing persons andentities haveoffered tocontribute adonation as
setforthbelowtothecity:  

NameofDonor Amount/Item
LakeFellowship Unitarian Universalists   $ 100

WHEREAS, thetermsorconditions ofthedonations aretobeusedforthe2023
Oktoberfest event; and

WHEREAS, allsuchdonations havebeencontributed tothecityforthebenefit ofits
citizens, asallowed bylaw; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil findsthatitisappropriate toaccept thedonation offered.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA ASFOLLOWS:  

1. Thedonations described aboveareaccepted andshallbeusedtoestablish
and/oroperate services eitheraloneorincooperation withothers, asallowed by
law.  

2. Thecityclerk ishereby directed toissuereceipts toeachdonoracknowledging
thecity’sreceipt ofthedonor’sdonation.  

Passed bytheCityCouncil ofShorewood, Minnesota this11thdayofSeptember 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   Contractor Agreement withMKMusicDBABachtoRock
5AMeetingDate:  Monday, September 11, 2023

Preparedby:   JanelleCrossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewedby:   MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   ParksandRecreation Independent Contractor Agreement

Background:  
BachtoRockspecializes inmusiclessonsforkids, teensandadults. Instructors usedatried-and- 
truemethodtoteachstudents toplaythemusictheyenjoymostallowingstudents tolearn
morequickly, havefunandgainconfidence intheirabilities. StaffisworkingwithBachtoRock
toprovideasmallvarietyofprograms forpre-kandages7-14. Programswilltakeplaceatthe
BachtoRockSchoolinMinnetonka justNortheastofCountryRoad101andHwy7.   

Approvaloftheagreement includesanyfutureaddendaexecutedbetweenthecontractor and
ParksandRecreation Director throughSpringof2024. Addendaoutlinesprogramlogisticssuch
aslocation, dates, times, programfeesandnoclassdays, andprogramdescriptions.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Therewillbean80/20percentsplitofrevenue.   

ActionRequested:   
Motiontoapprove theindependent contractor agreement withBachtoRock.   Asimple
majorityvoteisrequired.   

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood
Independent ContractorAgreement

Partiesandterms

ThisagreementisbyandbetweentheCityofShorewood (City) andMKMusicDBABachtoRock (Contractor). This

agreementisineffectfromSeptember11, 2023untilAugust31, 2024.  

Servicestobeperformed

TheContractorwillperformtheservicesoutlinedasanaddendumtothisagreement. Bysigningtheaddendumthecontractor
agreestotermsindicatedincludingdates, timesandpaymentagreement.  

Independentcontractor

ThisAgreementshallnotrendertheContractoranemployee, partner, oragentoftheCityforanypurpose. TheContractoris
andwillremainanindependentContractorin (his/her) relationshiptotheCity. TheCityshallnotberesponsibleforwithholding
taxeswithrespecttotheContractor’scompensationhereunder. TheContractorshallhavenoclaimagainsttheCityhereunder
orotherwiseforvacationpay, sickleave, retirementbenefits, socialsecurity, worker’scompensation, healthordisability
benefits, unemployment insurancebenefits, oremploymentbenefitsofanykind.  

TheContractorwillberesponsibleforthehiring, training, supervisionandconductofanystaffutilizedintheabovelisted
services. Allstaff, workingdirectlywithchildren, aresubjecttobackgroundchecks. Allbackgroundchecksmustbecompleted
priortothestartoftheabovelistedservices. ProofthatbackgroundchecksareconductedbytheContractormustbeprovided
totheCityintheformofanofficialletter. *IftheContractordoesnotprovideforbackgroundchecks, theCitywillperform
backgroundchecksfortheContractorandanystaffutilizedintheabovelistedservices. Anyservicefeesincurredforthe
backgroundcheckswillbebilledtotheContractor

TheContractorwilldeterminethemethod, detailsandmeansofperformingtheservicesoutlined.  

ConcussionLaw

TheContractormustbeincompliancewiththenewMinnesotastatelaw (Chapter90 – SF612/HF905) thattookeffect
September1, 2011. Thislawsetsintoplacepoliciesandstandardsforeducatingyouthathletes, parents, andcoachesonthe
topicofheadconcussions. Inaccordancewiththenewlaw, theContractormustprovideinformationtoallparticipating
coaches, officials, youthathletes, andtheathletes’ parentsorguardiansaboutthenatureandrisksofconcussions. Aswell, all
coachesand/orofficialsemployedbytheContractorarerequiredtoreceiveonlinetrainingonthenatureandrisksof
concussions (www.cdc.gov/concussion). Thetrainingmustberepeatedeverythreeyears.  

Compensation

TheCitywillpaytheContractoraportionofthenetprogramrevenue (specifiedintheaddendum). Uponthesuccessful
completionofthespecifiedservices, theContractorshallbilltheCityforservicesprovided.  

BusinessExpenses

AnyexpensesincurredbytheContractorpursuanttoprovidingtheservices, includingbutnotlimitedtotravelandphone
expenses, arethesoleresponsibilityoftheContractor.  

3/21/2023
Page1of4



Insurance

TheContractoranditssubcontractorsshallsecure, maintainandfurnishtheCitywithproofofthefollowinginsurance:  

a) CommercialGeneralLiability insurancewithlimitsofatleast $1,000,000peroccurrenceandatleast $2,000,000general
aggregate. TheCityshallbenamedasanadditionalinsuredandbeprovidedwithacopyoftheCertificateofLiability.  

b) Worker’sCompensationinsurance. \[Requiredifemploying staff\].  

c) CommercialAutomobileLiability insurancecoveringallowned, non-ownedandhiredautomobileswithlimitsofatleast
500,000peraccident. \[Required iftransportingparticipants\].  

AcceptanceoftheinsurancebytheCityshallnotrelieve, limitordecreasetheliabilityoftheContractor. Anypolicydeductiblesor
retentionshallbetheresponsibilityoftheContractor. TheContractorshallcontrolanyspecialorunusualhazardsandbe
responsibleforanydamagesthatresultfromthosehazards. TheCitydoesnotrepresentthattheinsurancerequirementsare
sufficienttoprotecttheContractor'sinterestorprovideadequatecoverage. Allpoliciesofinsuranceshallprovidethatthe
insurancecompanywillnotifytheCityatleastthirty (30) dayspriortotheeffectivedateofanypolicycancellation, modificationor
non-renewalpriortothedateonwhichtheContractororitsconsultantscommencesperformanceofitspartofthework, evidence
ofcoverageistobeprovidedtotheCity. TheCitymaydirectthatcopiesoftheactualinsurancepolicies, orrenewalsor
replacements thereof, besubmittedtotheCity.  

Waiver

TheContractorwaivesallitsrightsagainsttheCityfordamagescoveredbypropertyinsurance. TheContractorshallrequireasimilar
waiverfromallitsconsultants. TheContractorwaivesallofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCitybecauseofdeductibleclausesin, or
inadequacyoflimitsin, anypoliciesofinsurancethatareinanywayrelatedtotheworkandthataresecuredandmaintainedbythe
Contractor. TheContractorwaivesanyofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCitybecauseofalackofinsurancecoverage. TheContractor
shallrequiresimilarwaiversfromallofitsconsultants. TheContractorshallwaiveallofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCityforlossor
damagetoanyofitsequipment, machinery, toolsorpropertythatisusedinconnectionwiththisAgreement. TheContractorshall
requireasimilarwaiverfromallitsconsultants.  

Holdharmless

TheContractoragreestodefend, indemnifyandholdharmlesstheCity, itsofficersandemployees, fromanyliabilities, claims, damages,  
costs, judgments, andexpenses, includingattorney’sfees, resultingdirectlyorindirectlyfromanactoromissionofthecontractor, its
employees, agentsoremployeesofsubcontractors, intheperformanceofthiscontractorbyreasonofthefailureofthecontractorto
fullyperform, inanyrespect, allofitsobligationsunderthiscontract.  

Compliancewithstatutes

TheContractorshallabidebyalllawsthatgoverntheCityandbythepoliciesoftheCity, includingbutnotlimitedtotheData
PracticesAct, recordsretentionguidelines, non-discriminationanddisabilityaccommodation lawsandguidelines.  

Datapractices

TheContractoragreestocomplywiththeMinnesotaGovernmentDataPracticesActandallotherapplicablestateandfederallaws
relatingtodataprivacyorconfidentiality. TheContractorwillimmediatelyreporttotheCityanyrequestsfromthirdpartiesfor
informationrelatingtothisagreement. TheCityagreestopromptlyrespondtoinquiriesfromtheContractorconcerningdatarequests.  
TheContractoragreestoholdtheCity, itsofficers, departmentheadsandemployeesharmlessfromanyclaimsresultingfromthe
Contractor'sunlawfuldisclosureoruseofdataprotectedunderstateandfederallaws.  

3/21/2023 Page2of4



Audits

TheContractoragreesthattheCity, itsAuditororanyoftheirdulyauthorizedrepresentatives, atanytimeduringnormalbusiness
hoursandasoftenastheymayreasonablydeemnecessary, shallhaveaccesstoandtherighttoexamine, audit, excerptandtranscribe
anybooks, documents, papers, andrecordsthatarerelevantandinvolvetransactionsrelatingtothisagreement.  

Applicable law

ThelawoftheStateofMinnesotashallgovernallinterpretationsofthiscontract, andtheappropriatevenueandjurisdictionforany
litigationwhichmayarisehereunderwillbeinandunderthosecourtslocatedwithintheCountyofHennepin, StateofMinnesota,  
regardlessoftheplaceofbusiness, residenceorincorporationoftheContractor.  

Termination, cancellationanddefault

Eitherpartytothisagreementmayterminatethisagreementuponthirty (30) dayswrittennotice, exceptthatiftheContractorfailsto
fulfillitsobligationsunderthisagreementinaproperandtimelymanner, orotherwiseviolatesthetermsofthisagreement, theCity
shallhavetherighttoimmediatelysuspendthecontractedservicesandtothenterminatethisagreement, iftheContractorhasnot
curedthedefaultuponwrittennotice.  

Note: ifacontractedservicefailstomeettherequiredminimumnumberofparticipantssetbytheContractorandtheCity, the
servicemaybecancelledatnopenaltytoeithertheContractorortheCity.  

Notwithstandingtheabove, theContractorshallnotberelievedofliabilitytotheCityfordamagessustainedbytheCityasaresultof
anybreachofthisagreementbytheContractor. TheCitymay, insuchevent, withholdpaymentsduetotheContractorforthe
purposeofset-offuntilsuchtimeastheexactamountofdamagesduetotheCityisdetermined. Therightsorremediesprovidedfor
hereinshallnotlimittheCity, incaseofanydefaultbytheContractor, fromassertinganyotherrightorremedyallowedbylaw,  
equity, orbystatute.  

Modificationoramendment

Noamendment, changeormodificationofthisAgreementshallbevalidunlessinwritingandsignedbythepartieshereto.  

Entireunderstanding

Thisdocumentandanyexhibitattachedconstitutetheentireunderstandingandagreementoftheparties, andanyandallprior
agreements, understandingsandrepresentations areherebyterminatedandcanceledintheirentiretyandareofnofurther
forceandeffect.  

Unenforceabilityofprovisions

IfanyprovisionofthisAgreement, oranyportionthereof, isheldtobeinvalidandunenforceable, thentheremainderofthis
agreementshallremaininfullforceandeffect.  

InwitnesswhereoftheundersignedhaveexecutedthisAgreementasofthedayandyearfirstwrittenabove;  

ServicesProvidedbytheContractor

ItisunderstoodthattheContractorisexperiencedandtrainedtoprovidetheserviceslistedintheaddendumandthattheCity
requiressuchservices. Therefore, itisherebyagreedthattheContractorwillprovidethefollowingservices.  

1. Supplies: AnynecessarysupplieswillbesuppliedbytheContractor.  

2. Equipment: AnynecessaryequipmentwillbesuppliedbytheContractor

3. AmericanDisabilitiesAct (ADA): Thecityismandatedbylawtoprovidereasonableaccommodation forpeoplewith
disabilitieswhichincludecontractedrecreationservices. ContractorsareexpectedtoworkwiththeCityinorderto
provideforreasonableaccommodations.  

3/21/2023 Page3of4



ServicesProvidedbytheCity

ItisunderstoodthattheCitywillprovidethefollowingservicestofacilitateandsupportthecontractedserviceslistedabove.  

1. Promotion: TheCitywillpromotetheabovelistedservicesinShorewoodpublicationsandbyanyothermeansdeemed
necessary.  

2. FacilityUse: TheCitywillprovideandmaintainanappropriatespacefortheactivitiesandarrangeforitsuseatnocost
totheContractor.  

3. Registration/Refunds: TheCitywillberesponsibleforparticipantregistrationandfeecollectionfortheabovelisted
services. Participantwithdrawals – participantwithdrawalsmade7dayspriortothestartoftheabovelistedservices
willreceiveafullrefund. Afterthattime, norefundswillbeprovidedexceptforwithdrawalsmadedueto
illnesses/injury, withadoctor’snote, unlessagreeduponbyboththeCityandtheContractor. TheCitywillnotpaythe
contractorforrefundrequestsgrantedduetounsatisfactoryservicesprovidedbytheContractor.  

TheCitywillberesponsibleforprovidingaclasslisttotheContractor, 1weekpriortothestartdateoftheabovelisted
services. AllclasslistswillremainthepropertyoftheCity (pleaseseetheDatapracticessectionoftheContractAgreement).  

Severeweatherpolicy: intheeventofsevereweather, theCityandtheContractorwillmakeadeterminationonwhether
ornottocanceltheabovelistedservicesforthatday. Iftheabovelistedservicesarecancelled, arefundwillbeprovidedto
theparticipantsoramakeupdatewillbescheduled. Ifarefundisprovided, contractfeeswillbeadjustedaccordingly.  

4. ADA / Inclusion: TheCitywillprovidetheContractorwithinformationonanyparticipantswithspecialneedsandwill
workwiththeContractortomakeanynecessaryaccommodations thatarereasonable.  

ServiceSuspensionandCancelation

1. Ifacontractedservicefailstomeettherequiredminimumnumberofparticipants, theservicewillbecancelledatno
penaltytoeithertheContractorortheCity.  

2. IfatanytimetheactionsoftheContractorand/ortheirstaffcompromisethephysical, mentaloremotionalsafetyofa
participant, theCityshallhavetherighttoimmediatelysuspendservicesuntiltheissuehasbeenresolvedorthe
contractterminated (seeTerminationandDefaultsectionoftheIndependentContractorAgreement).  

OffsitePrograms

ThecontractoragreestoprovidetheCitywithacopyofCertificateofLiabilityforservicesofferedoffofcityproperty. TheCity
doesnotneedtobelistedasanadditionalinsured.  

ServiceAddendum

Aserviceaddendumwillbesenteachprogramcatalogindicatingservicedetailsincludingclassscheduleandpayarrangement.  
TheContractoragreestoreview, signandreturntheaddendumbeforeservicesareprovided.  

CityofShorewood Contractor:  

By:    
NameofContractor

Its: ___________  Signed:    

3/21/2023 Page4of4



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   Contractor Agreement withEezyExperience Education
5BDBASnapology

MeetingDate:  Monday, September 11, 2023
Preparedby:   JanelleCrossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewedby:   MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   ParksandRecreation Independent Contractor Agreement

ContractAddendum

Background:  
Snapology’sSTEAMprograms teachthroughbuildingusingLEGO® bricks, K’Nexandtechnology,  
making learningfun! Theuseanapproachofactivelydesigning, creating, interacting and
inventing. Activitiesencourage socialskillsandteamworkwhileteachingscience, technology,  
engineering, art, mathandliteracyconcepts. Staffiscoordinating withSnapology forcaregiver
andchildprogramsaswellasafterschool programs. DaytimeprogramswillbeheldatEddy’s
stationwhileafterschool programswillbeheldattheShorewood Community andEvent
Center.   

Approvaloftheagreement includesanyfutureaddendaexecutedbetweenthecontractor and
ParksandRecreation Director throughSpringof2024. Addendaoutlinesprogramlogisticssuch
aslocation, dates, times, program feesandnoclassdays, andprogramdescriptions.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Therewillbean80/20percentsplitofrevenue.   

ActionRequested:   
Motiontoapprovetheindependent contractor agreement withSnapology.   Asimplemajority
voteisrequired.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood
Independent ContractorAgreement

Partiesandterms

ThisagreementisbyandbetweentheCityofShorewood (City) andEezyExperienceEducationLLCDBA

SnapologyofPlymouth (Contractor). ThisagreementisineffectfromSeptember11, 2023untilAugust31, 2024.  

Servicestobeperformed

TheContractorwillperformtheservicesoutlinedasanaddendumtothisagreement. Bysigningtheaddendum, thecontractor
agreestotermsindicatedincludingdates, times, andpaymentagreement.  

Independentcontractor

ThisAgreementshallnotrendertheContractoranemployee, partner, oragentoftheCityforanypurpose. TheContractoris
andwillremainanindependentContractorin (his/her) relationshiptotheCity. TheCityshallnotberesponsibleforwithholding
taxeswithrespecttotheContractor’scompensationhereunder. TheContractorshallhavenoclaimagainsttheCityhereunder
orotherwiseforvacationpay, sickleave, retirementbenefits, socialsecurity, worker’scompensation, healthordisability
benefits, unemployment insurancebenefits, oremploymentbenefitsofanykind.  

TheContractorwillberesponsibleforthehiring, training, supervisionandconductofanystaffutilizedintheabovelisted
services. Allstaff, workingdirectlywithchildren, aresubjecttobackgroundchecks. Allbackgroundchecksmustbecompleted
priortothestartoftheabovelistedservices. ProofthatbackgroundchecksareconductedbytheContractormustbeprovided
totheCityintheformofanofficialletter. *IftheContractordoesnotprovideforbackgroundchecks, theCitywillperform
backgroundchecksfortheContractorandanystaffutilizedintheabovelistedservices. Anyservicefeesincurredforthe
backgroundcheckswillbebilledtotheContractor

TheContractorwilldeterminethemethod, detailsandmeansofperformingtheservicesoutlined.  

ConcussionLaw

TheContractormustbeincompliancewiththenewMinnesotastatelaw (Chapter90 – SF612/HF905) thattookeffect
September1, 2011. Thislawsetsintoplacepoliciesandstandardsforeducatingyouthathletes, parents, andcoachesonthe
topicofheadconcussions. Inaccordancewiththenewlaw, theContractormustprovideinformationtoallparticipating
coaches, officials, youthathletes, andtheathletes’ parentsorguardiansaboutthenatureandrisksofconcussions. Aswell, all
coachesand/orofficialsemployedbytheContractorarerequiredtoreceiveonlinetrainingonthenatureandrisksof
concussions (www.cdc.gov/concussion). Thetrainingmustberepeatedeverythreeyears.  

Compensation

TheCitywillpaytheContractoraportionofthenetprogramrevenue (specifiedintheaddendum). Uponthesuccessful
completionofthespecifiedservices, theContractorshallbilltheCityforservicesprovided.  

BusinessExpenses

AnyexpensesincurredbytheContractorpursuanttoprovidingtheservices, includingbutnotlimitedtotravelandphone
expenses, arethesoleresponsibilityoftheContractor.  

3/21/2023
Page1of4



Insurance

TheContractoranditssubcontractorsshallsecure, maintainandfurnishtheCitywithproofofthefollowinginsurance:  

a) CommercialGeneralLiability insurancewithlimitsofatleast $1,000,000peroccurrenceandatleast $2,000,000general
aggregate. TheCityshallbenamedasanadditionalinsuredandbeprovidedwithacopyoftheCertificateofLiability.  

b) Worker’sCompensationinsurance. \[Requiredifemploying staff\].  

c) CommercialAutomobileLiability insurancecoveringallowned, non-ownedandhiredautomobileswithlimitsofatleast
500,000peraccident. \[Required iftransportingparticipants\].  

AcceptanceoftheinsurancebytheCityshallnotrelieve, limitordecreasetheliabilityoftheContractor. Anypolicydeductiblesor
retentionshallbetheresponsibilityoftheContractor. TheContractorshallcontrolanyspecialorunusualhazardsandbe
responsibleforanydamagesthatresultfromthosehazards. TheCitydoesnotrepresentthattheinsurancerequirementsare
sufficienttoprotecttheContractor'sinterestorprovideadequatecoverage. Allpoliciesofinsuranceshallprovidethatthe
insurancecompanywillnotifytheCityatleastthirty (30) dayspriortotheeffectivedateofanypolicycancellation, modificationor
non-renewalpriortothedateonwhichtheContractororitsconsultantscommencesperformanceofitspartofthework, evidence
ofcoverageistobeprovidedtotheCity. TheCitymaydirectthatcopiesoftheactualinsurancepolicies, orrenewalsor
replacements thereof, besubmittedtotheCity.  

Waiver

TheContractorwaivesallitsrightsagainsttheCityfordamagescoveredbypropertyinsurance. TheContractorshallrequireasimilar
waiverfromallitsconsultants. TheContractorwaivesallofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCitybecauseofdeductibleclausesin, or
inadequacyoflimitsin, anypoliciesofinsurancethatareinanywayrelatedtotheworkandthataresecuredandmaintainedbythe
Contractor. TheContractorwaivesanyofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCitybecauseofalackofinsurancecoverage. TheContractor
shallrequiresimilarwaiversfromallofitsconsultants. TheContractorshallwaiveallofitsrightsofrecoveryagainsttheCityforlossor
damagetoanyofitsequipment, machinery, toolsorpropertythatisusedinconnectionwiththisAgreement. TheContractorshall
requireasimilarwaiverfromallitsconsultants.  

Holdharmless

TheContractoragreestodefend, indemnifyandholdharmlesstheCity, itsofficersandemployees, fromanyliabilities, claims, damages,  
costs, judgments, andexpenses, includingattorney’sfees, resultingdirectlyorindirectlyfromanactoromissionofthecontractor, its
employees, agentsoremployeesofsubcontractors, intheperformanceofthiscontractorbyreasonofthefailureofthecontractorto
fullyperform, inanyrespect, allofitsobligationsunderthiscontract.  

Compliancewithstatutes

TheContractorshallabidebyalllawsthatgoverntheCityandbythepoliciesoftheCity, includingbutnotlimitedtotheData
PracticesAct, recordsretentionguidelines, non-discriminationanddisabilityaccommodation lawsandguidelines.  

Datapractices

TheContractoragreestocomplywiththeMinnesotaGovernmentDataPracticesActandallotherapplicablestateandfederallaws
relatingtodataprivacyorconfidentiality. TheContractorwillimmediatelyreporttotheCityanyrequestsfromthirdpartiesfor
informationrelatingtothisagreement. TheCityagreestopromptlyrespondtoinquiriesfromtheContractorconcerningdatarequests.  
TheContractoragreestoholdtheCity, itsofficers, departmentheadsandemployeesharmlessfromanyclaimsresultingfromthe
Contractor'sunlawfuldisclosureoruseofdataprotectedunderstateandfederallaws.  

3/21/2023 Page2of4



Audits

TheContractoragreesthattheCity, itsAuditororanyoftheirdulyauthorizedrepresentatives, atanytimeduringnormalbusiness
hoursandasoftenastheymayreasonablydeemnecessary, shallhaveaccesstoandtherighttoexamine, audit, excerptandtranscribe
anybooks, documents, papers, andrecordsthatarerelevantandinvolvetransactionsrelatingtothisagreement.  

Applicable law

ThelawoftheStateofMinnesotashallgovernallinterpretationsofthiscontract, andtheappropriatevenueandjurisdictionforany
litigationwhichmayarisehereunderwillbeinandunderthosecourtslocatedwithintheCountyofHennepin, StateofMinnesota,  
regardlessoftheplaceofbusiness, residenceorincorporationoftheContractor.  

Termination, cancellationanddefault

Eitherpartytothisagreementmayterminatethisagreementuponthirty (30) dayswrittennotice, exceptthatiftheContractorfailsto
fulfillitsobligationsunderthisagreementinaproperandtimelymanner, orotherwiseviolatesthetermsofthisagreement, theCity
shallhavetherighttoimmediatelysuspendthecontractedservicesandtothenterminatethisagreement, iftheContractorhasnot
curedthedefaultuponwrittennotice.  

Note: ifacontractedservicefailstomeettherequiredminimumnumberofparticipantssetbytheContractorandtheCity, the
servicemaybecancelledatnopenaltytoeithertheContractorortheCity.  

Notwithstandingtheabove, theContractorshallnotberelievedofliabilitytotheCityfordamagessustainedbytheCityasaresultof
anybreachofthisagreementbytheContractor. TheCitymay, insuchevent, withholdpaymentsduetotheContractorforthe
purposeofset-offuntilsuchtimeastheexactamountofdamagesduetotheCityisdetermined. Therightsorremediesprovidedfor
hereinshallnotlimittheCity, incaseofanydefaultbytheContractor, fromassertinganyotherrightorremedyallowedbylaw,  
equity, orbystatute.  

Modificationoramendment

Noamendment, changeormodificationofthisAgreementshallbevalidunlessinwritingandsignedbythepartieshereto.  

Entireunderstanding

Thisdocumentandanyexhibitattachedconstitutetheentireunderstandingandagreementoftheparties, andanyandallprior
agreements, understandingsandrepresentationsareherebyterminatedandcanceledintheirentiretyandareofnofurther
forceandeffect.  

Unenforceabilityofprovisions

IfanyprovisionofthisAgreement, oranyportionthereof, isheldtobeinvalidandunenforceable, thentheremainderofthis
agreementshallremaininfullforceandeffect.  

InwitnesswhereoftheundersignedhaveexecutedthisAgreementasofthedayandyearfirstwrittenabove;  

ServicesProvidedbytheContractor

ItisunderstoodthattheContractorisexperiencedandtrainedtoprovidetheserviceslistedintheaddendumandthattheCity
requiressuchservices. Therefore, itisherebyagreedthattheContractorwillprovidethefollowingservices.  

1. Supplies: AnynecessarysupplieswillbesuppliedbytheContractor.  

2. Equipment: AnynecessaryequipmentwillbesuppliedbytheContractor

3. AmericanDisabilitiesAct (ADA): Thecityismandatedbylawtoprovidereasonableaccommodation forpeoplewith
disabilitieswhichincludecontractedrecreationservices. ContractorsareexpectedtoworkwiththeCityinorderto
provideforreasonableaccommodations.  

3/21/2023 Page3of4



ServicesProvidedbytheCity

ItisunderstoodthattheCitywillprovidethefollowingservicestofacilitateandsupportthecontractedserviceslistedabove.  

1. Promotion: TheCitywillpromotetheabovelistedservicesinShorewoodpublicationsandbyanyothermeansdeemed
necessary.  

2. FacilityUse: TheCitywillprovideandmaintainanappropriatespacefortheactivitiesandarrangeforitsuseatnocost
totheContractor.  

3. Registration/Refunds: TheCitywillberesponsibleforparticipantregistrationandfeecollectionfortheabovelisted
services. Participantwithdrawals – participantwithdrawalsmade7dayspriortothestartoftheabovelistedservices
willreceiveafullrefund. Afterthattime, norefundswillbeprovidedexceptforwithdrawalsmadedueto
illnesses/injury, withadoctor’snote, unlessagreeduponbyboththeCityandtheContractor. TheCitywillnotpaythe
contractor forrefundrequestsgrantedduetounsatisfactoryservicesprovidedbytheContractor.  

TheCitywillberesponsibleforprovidingaclasslisttotheContractor, 1weekpriortothestartdateoftheabovelisted
services. AllclasslistswillremainthepropertyoftheCity (pleaseseetheDatapracticessectionoftheContractAgreement).  

Severeweatherpolicy: intheeventofsevereweather, theCityandtheContractorwillmakeadeterminationonwhether
ornottocanceltheabovelistedservicesforthatday. Iftheabovelistedservicesarecancelled, arefundwillbeprovidedto
theparticipantsoramakeupdatewillbescheduled. Ifarefundisprovided, contractfeeswillbeadjustedaccordingly.  

4. ADA / Inclusion: TheCitywillprovidetheContractorwithinformationonanyparticipantswithspecialneedsandwill
workwiththeContractortomakeanynecessaryaccommodations thatarereasonable.  

ServiceSuspensionandCancelation

1. Ifacontractedservicefailstomeettherequiredminimumnumberofparticipants, theservicewillbecancelledatno
penaltytoeithertheContractorortheCity.  

2. IfatanytimetheactionsoftheContractorand/ortheirstaffcompromisethephysical, mentaloremotionalsafetyofa
participant, theCityshallhavetherighttoimmediatelysuspendservicesuntiltheissuehasbeenresolvedorthe
contractterminated (seeTerminationandDefaultsectionoftheIndependentContractorAgreement).  

OffsitePrograms

ThecontractoragreestoprovidetheCitywithacopyofCertificateofLiabilityforservicesofferedoffofcityproperty. TheCity
doesnotneedtobelistedasanadditionalinsured.  

ServiceAddendum

Aserviceaddendumwillbesenteachprogramcatalogindicatingservicedetailsincludingclassscheduleandpayarrangement.  
TheContractoragreestoreview, signandreturntheaddendumbeforeservicesareprovided.  

CityofShorewood Contractor:  

By:     ____ TanjaKaiser-Huiras________  
NameofContractor

Its: ___________  Signed: Tanja Kaiser-Huiras

3/21/2023 Page4of4



ADDENDUM

Summary ofProgram:  
Name ofSchool/RecCenter/Organization: CityofShorewood
Address: Freeman Park – Eddy’sStation Building: 6000 Eureka Rd

Shorewood Community and Event Center: 5735 Country Club Rd
Contact Name, Contact Phone, Contact email:   
JanelleCrossfield 952-960-7925 jcrossfield@ci.shorewood.mn.us
Name ofSnapology Program tobeoffered: SnapologySTEAMprogram

ththStart Date: October30, 2023 EndDate: May20, 2024
Dayoftheweek: Mondays- 4-weeksessions
Minimum Class Size: 6 Maximum Class Size: 20
Enrollment Fee: $80apersonperclasssession
Enrollment Deadline Date: 7daysprior

Fitness toParticipate:  Organization has noknowledgeofanyreasontheenrollees cannot
participate inphysicaloracademicactivities.  Organization agrees tofurnishSnapologywithan
enrolleeroster, includingstudentnames, gradesandanyknownlearningdisabilitiesormental
conditions.  

Payment Policy: Organization agreestopaytheentireEnrollmentFeelistedabove.    

Class SizeChange Policy:  Organization agrees toinformSnapologyimmediately ifthe
maximumclasssizeisexceededtodetermineifasecondclasscanbeaddedorifstudentswill
needtobeturnedaway.  Organizationunderstandsthatlateenrolleeswillpayaproratedamount.  



















CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-094

ARESOLUTION APPROVING ACOMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT FORTHEPROPERTY
LOCATED AT24250 SMITHTOWN ROAD

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (Applicant), hassubmitted arequest foracomprehensive
planamendment toalter the2040Comprehensive Plan’sLandUsePlanfrommedium density
residential tolow-to-medium density residential (Request) fortheproperty legally described as:  

ThatpartofLot3, Auditor’sSubdivision Number OneHundred Thirty-Three (133),  
Hennepin County, Minnesota, lyingeastofthewest220.82feetofLot3; andlying
southerly andwesterly ofthefollowing described lineA:  

LineA:  Beginning atapointontheeast lineofthewest220.82feetofLot3adistance
of430feetnorthofthenortherly boundary ofCounty Road19; thence eastatright
angles toapointdistance 70feetwestoftheeast lineofLot3; thence southparallel to
theeastlineofLot3tothenorthly boundary ofCounty Road19andthere terminating.  
Property) And,   

WHEREAS, theRequest hasbeensubmitted inthemanner required forthedevelopment of
landunder theShorewood CityCodeandunder Chapter 462ofMinnesota Statutes, andall
proceedings havebeen dulyconsistent thereunder; and,  

WHEREAS, saidRequest isconsistent inthemanner ofamendments totheShorewood
Comprehensive Planandtheregulations andrequirements ofthelawsoftheStateof
Minnesota andtheCityCodeoftheCityofShorewood fortheapproval ofsucharequest.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
Request fortheProperty isapproved , subject totherequired reviewbytheMetropolitan
Council.    

ADOPTED BYTHE CITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD this11thdayofSeptember,  
2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



Item
8A

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Approve Compensation Study/MarketAnalysisandPayGridCalibration
MeetingDate:  September 11, 2023
Preparedby:  SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewed by:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   DavidDrownAssociates FinalReportSummary

Resolution 23-095

Background
Atthecouncil/staffretreat inFebruaryof2023, theCouncildiscussedcompleting afull
compensation studytoensuretheCity’scompensation structure iscompetitive inthecurrent
market. OnMay22thecitycouncilapproved acontractwithDDAHumanResources, Inc. which
included thefollowing components:  

MarketAnalysis – collectionofdatafromcomparable organizations withsimilar
positions.  
PayGridCalibration – reviewcurrentstructureandrecommend adjustments ora
replacement ofthecurrentgrid.  

Theinformation resulting fromtheCompStudy/MarketAnalysisandPayGridCalibration
process helpstheCouncil developacompensation structure thatismarketcompetitive,  
establish itspayphilosophy relativetothemarket, helpavoidwagecompression, andensure
compliance withStatepayequityrequirements whichwillprovideastructure thatsupports
retaining valuableandtenuredstaffandattracting high-leveltalentinadifficult jobmarket.  
Shorewood wasbenchmarked againstsimilarcommunities.    

Finalrecommendations, includingpoliciesandguidelines, willbepresented totheCouncil this
eveningbyDr. TessiaMelvinofDavidDrownAssociates. Inherpresentation, Dr. Melvinwill
reviewthemarketanalysisprocessandhowmarketwagedatawascollected forthestudy.  She
willexplainhowamarketcompetitive compensation structurewasdetermined fromthatdata
andwillexplainhowtheplancouldthenbeimplemented bythecity.   

Dr. Melvinwillexplainthatduringthepreliminary analysis, DDAidentifiedsomeinconsistent
paygradeswiththepayequitypointsandinturnusedtheJobEvaluation Tool (JET) toreclassify
thosepositions identified. Thosepositionsareidentified intheattachedreport.    

Dr. Melvinwillexplainthemarketanalysisprocessoflookingatsimilar jobpositionsandwage
rangesthataremostlikebenchmark communities andapplyingaPositive (+) orNegative (-)  
figuretoeachposition indicating thattheCitypayseitheraboveorbelowthemarket.  Shewill
explaintheguidelines whenconsidering whether thecityisalignedwiththemarket.  Shewill
explainthatthemarketaverage isnolonger theaveragebutthattoretaingoodemployees and
recruitnewones, evenacompetitive strategy inthemarket isnolongerenough.  DDAisseeing



customers witha5-20% above market payphilosophy.  Shewilldiscuss thepayphilosophy
recommendations forthecouncil toconsider.   

Dr. Melvin willreviewthecity’scurrent compensation structure andhighlight the
recommended recalibrated paygridwhich includes thepayequity changes.  Shewillreview Pay
Equity forthecouncil.  Therecommended newpaygridincludes anadditional stepandan
additional gradeandremoved thefirststep.  Shewillexplain thatadding thestepwillallow
growth forthemanyShorewood employees whohavemaxed outonthecurrent paystructure
andwillallowfuturegrowth forotheremployees.  Anadditional stepwasaddedastheCity
Administrator’sposition felloffthecompensation structure without thisaddition andhisfuture
stepincreases arealsobasedonthePayGrid.  Therecommendation willputthecityinahighly
competitive payphilosophy.    

Dr. Melvin willbeavailable atthemeeting toanswer questions regarding thestudyandthe
recommendations.    

Thescopeofworkproposed inthecontract didnotinclude more in-depthworksuchas
position analysis orjobdescription re-writes. Thiswork, however, wasperformed byinternal
Human Resources staffandreceived valuable input fromallemployees anddepartment heads.   
AllShorewood jobdescriptions wereupdated during thisprocess toreflect accurate jobduties
inaconsistent format thatalignswiththeobjectives andcorevalues setforthbythecity
council.    

Thescopeoftheworkdoesnot include budgetary implementation scenarios, nordoesit
include annual on-goingmaintenance. Currently, thiswork isbeingperformed byinternal
Finance staff inconjunction withHuman Resources andtheCityAdministrator. However, these
services areavailable fromDDAifneeded ordesired aseitheralumpsumfeeorhourly service
following completion oftheinitial components.    

Themarket analysis process andtheclassification process performed byDDArevealed several
positions thatwereeither classified incorrectly ortheposition’sjobresponsibilities were
previously undervalued according toMNPayEquity. Those sixpositions, representing seven
Shorewood employees, havebeenreclassified andwillberecommended tothenewgradeas
presented intonight’spresentation. Theinitial reclassification isrecommended totakeeffect
onOctober 1, 2023. Withthereclassification ofthesepositions andforfuture reclassifications
orclassifications ofnewpositions, DDAisrecommending thecityadoptareclassification policy
forplacing thesepositions into thePayGrid.  Thefollowing arefouroptions forperforming this
stepoftheprocess andforreclassifying positions inthefuture.    

Please findbelow thefinancial impacts, advantages, anddisadvantages oftheproposed
reclassification policies forthepositions thathavebeenreclassified.  Staff isrecommending
Reclassification Policy Option4tobeapproved alongwiththeFinalMarket Analysis/PayGrid
Calibration performed byDDA.      



Reclassification Policy Option 1:   
Reclassify positions tothenewgrade intothenearest upgraded salary (nomatter
whatstepthat isorhowitdiffers fromcurrent step) inrelation totheircurrent
salary.   
Advantage: This istheleastcostlyofalltheoptions.    
Disadvantage: Thismaycause senior employees tohaveequivalent salaries asnewly
hiredemployees regardless ofthetimespent intheposition.     
Financial Impact to2023Budget ofapproximately $6,400

Reclassification Policy Option 2:  
Reclassify positions tothenewgrade intothestepthatcorresponds withthe
employee’scurrent stepbutinthenewgrade.    
Advantage: Thisallows allemployees tomaintain theircurrent stepstatus.      
Disadvantage: This isthemostexpensive ofalloptions.   
Financial Impact to2023Budget ofapproximately $11,018

Reclassification Policy Option 3:   
Reclassify positions tothenewgrade intothenearest upgraded salary (asinOption
1) butallowthoseemployees whohaveover5yearsofservice anadditional step
increase toallowforseniority andexperience tobepaidatahigher ratethannewly
hiredemployees.  
Advantage: Thisallows foraone-stepincrease insalary forsenior employees who
havedeveloped theskillset andexperience intheposition overnewlyhired
employees.    
Disadvantage: Employees mustattain the5-yearseniority markbefore being
considered forahigher rateofclassification payovernewlyhiredemployees.     
Financial Impact to2023Budget ofapproximately $8,106

Reclassification Policy Option 4:   
Reclassify positions tothenewgrade intothenearest upgraded salarybutallow
thoseemployees whohaveover3yearsofservice anadditional step increase to
allowforseniority andexperience tobepaidatahigher ratethannewlyhired
employees.  
Advantage: Thisallows foraone-stepincrease insalary foremployees whohave
developed theskillset andexperience intheposition foratleast3yearsovernewly
hiredemployees andrepresents amoreemployee-friendly policyandplacesavalue
onseniority andexperience.     
Disadvantage: Employees mustattain the3-yearseniority markbeforebeing
considered forahigher rateofclassification payovernewlyhiredemployees.     
Financial Impact to2023Budget ofapproximately $9,015.    



Process Timeline
September 11, 2023:   
Council toreview preliminary analysis, recommendations andconsider finalapproval.  
September 25, 2023:  
Update Shorewood Personnel Policy/Employee Handbook tocreateapolicyonplacement into
thegridbasedonreclassification.  
October 1, 2023:  
Implementation ofreclassification ofpositions.   
September toOctober 2023:  
Employees toreview classifications.  

o Classification Appeal Process, ifemployees feelthattheir jobdescription is
missing something orwarrants another review. DDAwill reviewanyappeals.  

UponApproval andOngoing intoJanuary 2024:  
Market Analysis andNewPayGridImplementation.  

Financial Considerations
Thecostforthereclassification ofpositions tobeimplemented in2023 proposed at $9,015will
befunded fromfunded fromdepartmental budgets andreserves asnecessary. Theestimated
costforthemarket analysis andpaygridimplementation proposed forJanuary 1, 2024, of
34,043hasbeen included intheproposed 2024budget.    

Action Requested
Motion toapprove Resolution 23-095Approving Shorewood Compensation Study/Market
Analysis andPayGridCalibration andReclassification Policy Option4.  Asimple majority vote is
required.  



Wayzata Office
3620Northome Avenue

Wayzata, MN55391
Phone: (612)920-3320x103 | Fax: (612)605-2375

www.daviddrown.com

RE:  MarketAnalysisPreliminary Report

Project Summary
TheCityofShorewood contracted withDDAHumanResources toconductamarketanalysis. Theobjectives wereto:  

Collectmarketwagedata.  
Developacompensation structure thatismarketcompetitive.  
Identifyanimplementation plan.  

PayEquity
Afterourpreliminary analysisofthemarketdata, weidentifiedsomeinconsistent paygradeswiththepayequitypoints.  
DDAreviewedalljobswiththeJobEvaluation Tool (JET) systemtoguarantee updated jobclassification. Thoughnotpart
ofthescopeoftheprojectDDAevaluated eachposition. Jobclassifications aredetermined bythefollowingcriteria:  

Qualica?ons
o Whatlevelofeduca?onandexperienceisrequired?   

DecisionMaking
o Whatlevelofdecisionsdoesthisposi?onmake?   
o Whatistheimpactofthesedecisionsontheorganiza?on?   
o Doesthisposi?onrequireleadership, makepolicy, establishstrategy?   

ProblemSolving
o Whatisthenatureofproblemsolvinginthisjob?   
o Areproblemstechnical, interpersonal, ormanagerial?   

Rela?onships
o Whataretheinternalandexternalworkingrela?onships?   
o Isteamworkrequired?   
o Isthejobdealingwithcustomers?   
o Isthisjobposi?onedtoimpactmorale, cultureandreputa?on?   

Eort
o Whatlevelofmentalandphysicaleortisrequired?   
o Isthejobsubjecttophysicalandmentalfa?gue?   
o Howfrequently?   

Condi?ons/Hazards
o Whataretheenvironmental workingcondi?ons?   
o Istheriskofinjuryorillness?   
o Isalotoftravelrequired?   
o Doestheposi?oninvolvedemandinginterac?onswiththepublic?  

ThefollowingClassification changesareproposed:  
Job CurrentGrade Proposed grade

AdminAsst. 5 7

BuildingOfficial 12 13



RecPartTime 3 4

ParkandRecDirector 11 13

CityClerk / HR 13 14

Administrator 19 20

DDAreviewed theclassification ofeachposition. Thosepositions thatchangedclassification werebasedonsomeparts
ofthejobdescription thatwaspreviously under-valued.  

Benchmark Communities andJobs
DDApartnered withtheCitytoselectagroupofcitieswhomthecitycompetes fortalentandhaveoneormoreofthe
followingcriteria:  

Geographic Proximity
Popula?onSize
ServicesProvided
En??esyouloseemployees to
En??esyourecruit from
Otherfactors includetaxcapacity, sizeofbudget, numberofemployees, etc.   

Thefollowing listwascreated

Albertville ArdenHills
Dayton Delano
LakeElmo LittleCanada
Mahtomedi MendotaHeights
Minnetrista Mound
MoundsView NorthBranch
NorthSt. Paul OakGrove
Orono SpringLakePark
St. Anthony VadnaisHeights
Victoria Waconia
Wyoming

TheCouncilagreedtouseMinnetonka asaspotlight community. Spotlightcommuni?esareci?esorcoun?esthat, while
youwanttoknowwhattheyarepayingtheiremployees, arenotnecessarily agoodmatchforsalarypurposes because
theyareusuallymuchlarger. Including thedataasaspotlight community allowstheclienttobeawareofwhatsome
otherci?esorcoun?esarepayingwithoutdistor?ngthemarketdatafromsimilarcommuni?estotheirown.   

MarketAnalysis
Foreachposition, welookedatsimilar jobpositions andwageranges. Notethatnotalljobshavecomparable jobsin
otherentities, sowebegintocalibratethepaystructureatjobsthataremostlikebenchmark communities.  

Foreachpositionthepercentage difference hasbeencalculated betweentheCity’sfigureandthemarket.  

2 | Page



Ifthefigureis:  
Positive (+): Figureindicates thattheCitypaysabovethemarket
Negative (-): Figureindicates thattheCitypaysbelowthemarket

Thefollowingguidelines areusedwhendetermining thecompetitive natureofcurrentactualcompensation:  
o +/- 5% (HighlyAlignedwiththemarket)  
o +/- 10% (Alignedwiththemarket)  
o +/- 11-15% (Possiblemisalignment withthemarket)  
o > 15% (Significantmisalignment withthemarket)  

Itshouldbenotedthatmarketaverage isnolongertheaverage. Inordertoretaingoodemployees andrecruitones,  
theCitymustreviewincentives towork. Withthelabormarketbeingasvolatileasitisrightnow, highlycompetitiveness
isnotenough. DDAisseeingcustomers witha5-20% abovemarketaveragepayphilosophy.  

NextSteps
Council toreviewpreliminary analysisandrecommendations
Employees toreviewclassifications.  

o Classification AppealProcess, ifemployees feelthattheirjobdescription ismissingsomethingor
warrantsanotherreview.  

o DDAwillreviewanyappeals.  
FormalCouncilApproval
UpdateEmployee Handbook tocreateapolicyonplacement intothegridbasedonreclassification
Implementation

3 | Page



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-095

ARESOLUTION APPROVING SHOREWOOD COMPENSATION STUDY,   
MARKET ANALYSIS ANDPAYGRID CALIBRATION

WHEREAS, attheannual council/staff retreat inFebruary of2023, theCouncil discussed
completing afullcompensation study toensure theCity’scompensation structure is
competitive inthecurrent market; and

WHEREAS, onMay22, 2023, thecitycouncil approved acontract withDDAHuman Resources,  
Inc. which included thefollowing components: Market Analysis – collection ofdatafrom
comparable organizations withsimilar positions andPayGridCalibration – review current
structure andrecommend adjustments orareplacement ofthecurrent grid; and

WHEREAS, theinformation resulting fromtheComp Study/Market Analysis andPayGrid
Calibration process helpstheCouncil develop acompensation structure that ismarket
competitive, establish itspayphilosophy relative tothemarket, helpavoidwagecompression,  
andensure compliance withStatepayequity requirements; and

WHEREAS, thefinalrecommendations resulting fromthestudy, including policies and
guidelines, werepresented totheCouncil atameeting heldonSeptember 11, 2023, byDr.  
Tessia Melvin ofDavid DrownAssociates.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thattheCity
ofShorewood Compensation Study, Market Analysis, andPayGridCalibration andthepolicies
asapproved bytheCityCouncil.     

ADOPTED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood this11thdayofSeptember 2023

ATTEST:      Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk


	Agenda
	2A Minutes Work Session
	2B Minutes Regular Meeting
	2C Verified Claims
	2D Donation to Oktoberfest
	5A Back to Rock
	5B Snapology
	6A Lake Park Villas
	8A Compensation Study



